GENERAL INFORMATION

Linmark Group Limited (“Company”) was incorporated
and domiciled in Bermuda on 25 January 2002 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10 May 2002.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in Note 35.

These financial statements are prepared in US dollar,

unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue

by the Company’s Board of Directors on 28 June 2006.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”). The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, which are carried at fair value.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies. The areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4. These estimations and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and
Although those

estimates are based on management’s best

expenses during the years.

knowledge of event and actions, actual results
ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Effect of adopting new/revised IFRS

During the year ended 30 April 2006, the Group
adopted the following new/revised International
Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and IFRS issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee Interpretations (“IFRIC Interpretations”)
issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee below, which are
relevant to its operations. The comparatives as at
and for the year ended 30 April 2005 have been
amended as required, in accordance with the
relevant requirements.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements

IAS 2 Inventories

IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

IAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

IAS 17 Leases
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Effect of adopting new/revised IFRS (continued)

IAS 21
IAS 24
IAS 27
IAS 31
IAS 32
IAS 33

IAS 39

IAS 39

(Amendment)

IFRS 2

SIC
Interpretation 12
(Amendment)
IFRIC

Interpretation 1

IFRIC

Interpretation 2

The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates
Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Interests in Joint Ventures

Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation

Earnings per Share

Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement

Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial
Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Share-based Payment

Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities

Changes in Existing
Decommissioning, Restoration
and Similar Liabilities

Members’ Shares in
Co-operative Entities and

Similar Instruments

The adoption of IAS 1, 2, 8, 10, 16, 17, 21, 24, 27,
31, 32, 33, 39, 39 (Amendment), SIC Interpretation
2 (Amendment), IFRIC Interpretation 1 and 2 did

not result in substantial changes to the accounting

policies of the Group. In summary:

J IAS 1 has affected the presentation of

minority interest and other disclosures.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Effect of adopting new/revised IFRS (continued)

. IAS 2, 8,10, 16, 17, 27, 31,
(Amendment), SIC
(Amendment), IFRIC Interpretations 1 and 2

32, 33, 39, 39
Interpretation 12

had no material effect on the Group’s policies.

J IAS 21 had no material effect on the Group’s
policies. The functional currency of each of
the Group entities has been re-evaluated based
on the guidance to the revised standard. All
the Group entities have the same functional
currency as the presentation currency for
respective entity financial statements.

o IAS 24 has extended the identification of
related parties and some other related party
disclosures.

The adoption of IFRS 2 has resulted in a change in
the accounting policy for share-based payment.
Until 30 April 2005, the provision of share options
to employees did not result in an expense in the
income statement. Effective on 1 May 2005, the
Group expenses the cost of share options in the
income statement. As a transitional provision, the
cost of share options granted after 7 November
2002 and had not yet vested on 1 May 2005 was
expensed retrospectively in the income statement
of the respective years.

All changes in the accounting policies have been

made in accordance with the transitional
provisions in the respective standards. All standards
adopted by the Group require retrospective

application other than:

o IAS 16 — the initial measurement of an item
of property, plant and equipment acquired in
an exchange of assets transaction is
accounted at fair value prospectively only to
future transactions;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Effect of adopting new/revised IFRS (continued)

o IAS 39 — does not permit to recognise,

derecognise and measure financial assets and

liabilities in accordance with this standard on

a retrospective basis; and

o IFRS 2 — only retrospective application for

all equity instruments granted after 7
November 2002 and not vested at 1 May

2005.

The adoption of IFRS 2 has resulted in:

Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

FTEEFHRBE @

(@) WHEXE(E)
RiNFTE] - FENEET BRI 75 4R &2 R <
#E &)
o BERBSERE3IIHT — AB5F
REBEAER L EMEERTD « I
BRSIEMBEEREE R

s BRVBBRSEAFE2%R — E8
WEARMBRIES _F+—F8
CEEBEMR_SShFhS—
BeRBEBIRALR -

RIMBI BRI B R S RS 257G 2 ¢

2006 2005
ZEERE _EFAEF
UsS$’000 UsS$’000
£7T XE7T
Increase in general and — MR R AT RSB 0
administrative expenses 448 —
Increase in share option BREREZD
reserve 448 —
Decrease in retained RS &AL D
earnings 448 —
Decrease in basic earnings SR E XN & D
per share (US cent) (Z=1) 0.07 —
Decrease in diluted earnings & & i# % 22l 5 D
per share (US cent) (=) 0.07 —

L

=




2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FZ2

POLICIES (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a)
Standards, interpretations and amendments to
published standards that are not yet effective
Certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published that are mandatory for the Group’s
financial statements in respect of accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006 but
which the Group has not early adopted, as follows:

IAS 19 Employee Benefits
(Amendment)

IAS 39 Cash Flow Hedge
(Amendment) Accounting of Forecast

Intragroup Transactions

IAS 39 The Fair Value Option
(Amendment)

IAS 39 Financial Guarantee Contracts
(Amendment)
and IFRS 4
(Amendment)

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
(Amendment) International Financial

Reporting Standards

IFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation
(Amendment) of Mineral Resources
IFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation

of Mineral Resources

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, and a
Complementary Amendment
to IAS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements

— Capital Disclosures

IFRIC Determining Whether an
Interpretation 4 Arrangement Contains
a Lease
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Standards,
published standards that are not yet effective

interpretations and amendments to

(continued)
IFRIC
Interpretation 5

Rights to Interest Arising from
Decommissioning,
Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds

IFRIC Liabilities Arising from

Interpretation 6 Participating in a Specific

Market — Waste Electrical

And Electronic Equipment

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these changes and the Group’s
management do not expect these changes to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of

operations and financial position.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 30 April.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the

date that control ceases.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by
the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.
Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated but considered an

impairment indicator of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been

changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with minority interests as
transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to minority interests result
in gains and losses for the Group that are
recorded in the income statement. Purchases
from minority interests result in goodwill,
being the differences between any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of

the subsidiary.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity established under
a contractual arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to a joint
control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic

activity.

In the consolidated financial statements,
investments in joint ventures are accounted
for by the equity method of accounting and is
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s share
of post-acquisition profits or losses of joint
ventures is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interest in the joint venture,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Consolidation (continued)
(iii)  Joint ventures (continued)
Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transactions provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets

transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in joint ventures are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The results of joint ventures are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments. A
geographical segment is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of segments operating

in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). These financial
statements are presented in United States
dollar, which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are recognised in the income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the
group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflation economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

— income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of

equity.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii)  Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
operation is sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss

on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical
expenditure that is directly

cost includes

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
reliably. All

maintenance are charged to the income statement

measured other repairs and

during the period in which they are incurred.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is

calculated using the straight-line method to

allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements  over the shorter of 5
years or the terms of
the leases

Furniture and equipment 3 to 5 years

Motor vehicles and yacht 5 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each

balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are

included in the income statement.

Intangible assets

(i)  Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary/business at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiary/business is included in intangible
assets. Separately recognised goodwill is
tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of
an entity/a business include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity/

business sold.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Intangible assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.
The Group allocates goodwill to each
business segment in each country in which it

operates.

Deferred expenditure

Material items of expenditure that do not
relate solely to revenue which has already
been accounted for are deferred to the extent
that they are recoverable out of future
revenue, and will contribute to the future

earning capacity of the Group.

Deferred expenditure is amortised over the
period in which the related benefits are
expected to be realised. Deferred expenditure
is reviewed annually to determine the
amount, if any, that is no longer recoverable
and any such amount is written off to the
income statement.

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks that have an
indefinite useful life are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
are tested annually for impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EIBBHBERMR @)

POLICIES (continued)

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets (g FHUBEERE
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not EURUCHRTFHNEESASTERM
subject to depreciation and amortisation and are o BFETREAR  WERLSH
tested annually for impairment and are reviewed FLORBEHCENEECKRBETRE
for impairment whenever events or changes in FERWOE - AISETRESEX - E1T
circumstances indicate that carrying amount may NERBMENEECRLSSHRLIR
not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to BEENEENREETEEAND
depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for 5 AISETREEXR -E—REED
impairment whenever events or changes in FEEBBEINOTRE  BiHE
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount BEDHEEGE - —BREENTNOZ
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is BORENVEERKRDEMALTE
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s FABEDPcRSEED - HEEEZRE
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. BEER  ZR/NRERZEMLES
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s DRINTFAIRETRBSE - ELS
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the CIDHBEERER  SRIVSEH
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are EITRERDE
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(h) Inventories (hy BE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. Cost comprises the
direct costs of merchandise and charges that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

0]

)

(k)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. A
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is an
objective evidence that the Group will not able to
collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation
and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade and other
receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at effective interest
rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in
the income statement within general and

administrative expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less, and bank overdraft. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current

liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FTEESHBEEWME @
POLICIES (continued)
(k) Share capital (continued) k) BE @)

M

Where the Company purchases its equity shares,
the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes),
is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such
shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

(U]

NARTIBEERSHRD - FIYNE
(BREEUERSEERENAN KRS
R)RADDRBITEABIGZRAPI
B BEEXSFRODEWLHE BRI
HERIL - HEBERHERKBENE
a7 - AUEEAMIEC B GORED
BINREEBERZNARBEMER
FE)SFANRRTEDTBABGEZE

pa

2

o

Bl

B8
BEUNFEBEIRRZZEBRARIFR
BREDILAA - HEZEHERAD
- IERE DBERZEM) BROE
BECEBNEREERBEAUBERAZR
RESTAE BN K PER -

BEDOBIRRIDEE » KIFAEER
BREERISEEGEHREIRERSE
Basd+_BRAEm® -

L

SRFTHE MEEE

97



2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, a deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probably that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(n) Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Group companies participate in various
pension schemes. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to insurance
companies or trustee-administered funds. The
Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution
plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A
defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is
not a defined contribution plan. Typically,
defined benefit plans define an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and

compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is
the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the
fair value of plan assets, together with
adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains
or losses and past service costs. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by
using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the

related pension liability.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Pension obligations (continued)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in income, unless the changes to the pension
plan are conditional on the employees
remaining in service for a specified period of
time (the vesting period). In this case, the
past-service costs are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as
employment costs when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a

reduction in the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based compensation (continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated before the normal
retirement date or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according
to a detailed formal plan without possibility
of withdrawal; or providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after
balance sheet date are discounted to present

value.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision for bonuses
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a

present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events; it is more likely than not that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation; and the amount has been reliably

estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised

as interest expense.

Provision for warranties is recognised when the
underlying products or services are sold, and is

estimated based on historical warranty data.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
merchandise and the provision of services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities, net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and

after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue from the sales of merchandise is
recognised when the the Group has delivered
products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the

related receivables is reasonably assured.

Commission income is recognised upon shipment

of the underlying goods procured by the Group.

Service income is recognised when the services are

rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. IREHBRME

POLICIES (continued)

(p) Revenue recognition (continued) (p) WEHER ()
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion NBBMAREERANREUGELRRE
basis using the effective interest method. e
Reimbursement income from customers is KESFNENERARKEZFET
recognised when expenses paid on behalf of BAZ T -
customers are incurred.
Handling fee income is recognised when the FEBENADHBEEFERHERTES
related handling services are rendered. RN °

(q) Leases (as the lessee) (q BEWFRABEA)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks NEEBHBRENBALDRARAMO RS
and rewards of ownership are retained by the BHEARBNES  HoERKER
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments = - BUREESNES REOLE
made under operating leases (net of any incentives ABFPHES) UERERZBERNER
received from the lessor) are charged to the income IR -
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

(r) Dividend distribution n BREIIK

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk, and cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks
of the Group. Because of the simplicity of the
financial structure and the current operations of the
Group, no major hedging activities are undertaken
by management.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s transactions, trade receivables
and trade payables are mainly denominated
in United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and
Sterling. As the exchange rate of United States
dollar and Hong Kong dollar is pegged,
management considers the foreign exchange
risk in this respect is not significant. Foreign
exchange risks from Sterling transactions are
managed by the Group’s treasury with the use
of foreign exchange contracts. The Group has
certain investments in foreign operations,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. However, as the net
foreign exchange exposure of the foreign
operations is not significant, the Group does
not presently hedge this foreign exchange
exposure. The Group periodically reviews
liquid assets and liabilities held in currencies
other than United States dollar, Hong Kong
dollar and Sterling to ensure that net exposure

is kept at an acceptable level.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. It has policies in place to
ensure that sale of products and services are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. It also has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any financial

institution.

Liquidity risk
The Group maintains sufficient cash and

credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

(iv) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest income from cash and cash

equivalent is insignificant to the Group’s
revenue and income. As the Group has no
other significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

(b) Fair value estimation

The nominal value less estimated credit
adjustments of trade receivables and trade payables

are assumed to approximate their fair values.

The fair value of consideration payable for
acquisitions of subsidiaries/businesses and assets
for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group

for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(0]

(ii)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and
amortisation charges for its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of similar nature and functioning.
Management will increase the depreciation and
amortisation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives. They will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable and amortisation lives and therefore
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future

periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(other than goodwill) are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. These calculations require the
use of judgements and estimates.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i)
whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be
recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or
net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the

income statement.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment. For the purposes of
impairment reviews, the recoverable amount of
goodwill is determined based on value-in-use
The

primarily use cash flow projections based on five-

calculations. value-in-use calculations
year financial budgets approved by management
and estimated terminal value at the end of the five-
year period. There are a number of assumptions
and estimates involved in the preparation of cash
flow projections for the period covered by the
approved budgets. Key assumptions include the
expected growth in revenues and gross margin,
timing of future capital expenditures, growth rates
and selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved. Management prepares the financial
budgets reflecting actual

and prior year

performance and market development
expectations. Judgement is required to determine
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
projections and changes to key assumptions can
significantly affect these cash flow projections and

therefore the results of the impairment reviews.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of its customers and other debtors and the
current market condition, and requires the use of
judgements and estimates. Management reassesses

the provision at each balance sheet date.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(v)

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. There are certain transactions and
which the
determination is uncertain during the ordinary

calculations for ultimate tax
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
When the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
charges in the period in which such estimates have
been changed.
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REVENUE 5. W&
2006 2005
—_EBERF _EERF
us$’000 US$’000
=TT =TT
Sales of merchandise FHRHE 249,930 47,496
Commission income SN 32,540 36,136
Service income AR #F UL 5,852 6,205
288,322 89,837

Sales of merchandise represents revenue from trading of
garment, labels and consumer electronics products.
Commission income represents revenue from
procurement agency business, and service income
represents revenue from provision of value-added
services in relation to the procurement agency business
(including inspection and social compliance auditing

service).

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(a) Primary reporting format — business segments
At 30 April 2006, the Group is organised on a
worldwide basis into two main business segments:
(i) sales of merchandise (garment, labels and
consumer electronic products); and (ii) provision of
services (procurement service, value-added
services relating to the procurement agency

business).
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6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6.

(a)

Primary reporting format — business segments (a)

(continued)

The segment information for the year ended 30

Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

HDBER =)
FTES2HRHN — EHFDHE (B

BE_SENFNE=1TBILFEND

April 2006 is as follows: BERD T
Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
BRHE RERE &5t
us$’000 us$’000 Us$’000
e ETT =TT

Revenue S

External revenue AN 7 249,930 38,392 288,322
Segment result DABERE 5,996 4,708 10,704
Interest income AN 814
Excess of interest in fair REAWBAT

value of acquired EEFELVEELZ

subsidiaries’ net assets EmBamA s

over cost 5B 3,397
Finance costs VBB (549)
Share of loss of a joint B —XREEEEL

venture BB (49)
Unallocated corporate RO EEFMZ

expenses (1,039)
Profit before income tax BRATER B 13,278
Income tax expense e (2,763)
Profit for the year FE®A 10,515
Segment assets DREE 158,885 43,472 202,357
Unallocated corporate assets KD EFEEE 7,108
Total assets BERE 209,465
Segment liabilities DEEE 78,163 14,632 92,795
Current income tax liabilities RENETEREE 2,901
Deferred income tax BELEBEREE

liabilities 125
Unallocated corporate RKOWEEERE

liabilities 8,867
Total liabilities BERSR 104,688
Capital expenditures BARZ 65,953 920 66,873
Depreciation charge EEH 305 1,134 1,439
Impairment of trade BN E SRR R EM

and other receivables FEUFRIE < 6 1B 104 5,749 5,853
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6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
(@) Primary reporting format — business segments

(continued)

The segment information for the year ended 30

6.

DEER =)

(@ EBE2ELHA —XFEI>R @

BHE_SESEHFUE=+tHLFEHND

April 2005 is as follows: BERWT -
Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
BmHE RER =k
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
=TT =TT ESS
Revenue U £
External revenue IR U 2t 47,496 42,341 89,837
Segment result DEERE 1,745 13,029 14,774
Interest income A SUTA 1,321
Gain on dissolution of BENEATZ
subsidiaries U &4 13
Finance costs HFER (22)
Share of loss of a joint B —XREETEL
venture B8 (12)
Unallocated corporate RO
expenses (440)
Profit before income tax FTBREIEA 15,634
Income tax expense PERAS (880)
Profit for the year FE Al 14,754
Segment assets NEEE 42,687 44,299 86,986
Unallocated corporate assets KD EEH¥EEE 13,241
Total assets EERE 100,227
Segment liabilities NEBEE 20,922 10,103 31,025
Current income tax liabilities RETERERE 1,454
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTERE & 118
Unallocated corporate RKOWEXEERE
liabilities 2,311
Total liabilities 5ERE 34,908
Capital expenditures EARxZ 27,220 1,341 28,561
Depreciation charge nEEH 73 1,115 1,188
Impairment of trade BN E Z R R EAD
and other receivables FEURIE 2 B 1B 267 414 681
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fe B S K EE
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6. DRER @
(@) Primary reporting format — business segments (@ EEBE28HX — FHFIH/E &)
(continued)
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant DEEELTZOR/YE BMERRIR -
and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, BEEE  GE BRXFOoBEGLE
receivables and operating cash attributable to IWREBERKEERE - pEEETAEE
individual business segment. They exclude assets HIFTEXRECEE -
held for corporate use.
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. DEEBEEBKERRE - DEEET L
The exclude items such as taxation and corporate BREREREZEES -
borrowings.
Capital expenditures comprise additions to UM 15 R 1601 EARSZE15Y)
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets X BWERRBCAE HEEREE W
as set out in Notes 15 and 16, respectively, BREERERSHETINEBMMELNAR
including additions resulting from the acquisitions =i
through business combinations.
(b) Secondary reporting format — geographical b) ET2HAHIN — HEHE
segments
The Group’s two business segments operate in five REFBRODBESMWHARLEMBERED
main geographical locations. The following table B PTERAEBNL BERERE
provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue, total RSB DT
assets and capital expenditures by geographical
locations.
Revenue Total assets Capital expenditures
U 28 EERE EXRX
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

TRRRE "ERhFE SB]REF BRLHF “FFRE _FBLF
US$'000  US$’000  US$'000  US$'000  US$’000  US$'000

=TT =TT =TT =TT =TT =TT

Europe @R 172,749 22,517 106,070 49 65,550 11
Australia B 33,447 11,860 — — — —
Africa FEM 30,531 11,609 52 140 — 13
North America PlEP 29,990 28,906 — — — —
Hong Kong B 8,753 6,609 99,607 96,224 979 27,984
Others Hih 12,852 8,336 3,736 3,814 344 553
288,322 89,837 209,465 100,227 66,873 28,561

Revenue is allocated based on the location of W DIRESEMAEOIR - EEREBEREAR:
customers. Total assets and capital expenditures are DIRBESSEEMENDE -
allocated based on the location of those assets.
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OTHER INCOME 7. HEAMEA
2006 2005
ZEBEREF “E|EhF
US$’000 Us$’000
ETT XETT
Interest income A FUTA 814 1,321
Reimbursement income from RESZFENMEA
customers 737 587
Handling fee income FEBWA 618 372
Dividend income from listed KRB EM@ESFHERIUA
securities — 16
Others HAf 432 147
2,601 2,443
EXPENSES BY NATURE 8. BMEBE#DMEXZ
2006 2005
“EBEREF “_E2hF
US$’000 Us$’000
ETT XETT
Depreciation of property, plant Mx - MERRBITE
and equipment 1,439 1,188
Loss on disposal of property, HEYXE MERREBEBE
plant and equipment 10 36
Provision for impairment of trade EINEZKRARAMENRIE 2
and other receivables TR AE B 5,853 681
Employment costs including BRRESMEERNZ
directors’” emoluments (Note 9) EBEMA (Byst9) 28,198 22,666
Changes in inventories GE®E# (13,485) (55)
Inventories purchased EEECHE 231,244 41,055
Provision for warranties BREE 6,772 —
Freight charges EE 3,751 292
Other direct cost of sales HihEZHEERNAN 1,641 221
Operating lease payment BERUTEBECKEHEETR
in respect of
— office premises and staff — MRESNRETBES
quarters 1,805 1,452
— furniture and equipment — &R RERE 145 198
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) IMNEESE (W) i $48 1,499 (46)
Auditors’ remuneration (Note 8a) #1808l & (v 5+ 8a) 189 138
Other expenses HRE 2 11,383 8,799
Total cost of sales and general HEMAUR —RRITH
and administrative expenses F 2 1R 58 280,444 76,625
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RS
8. EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 8. BRMEBHICRX =
8(a) Auditors’ remuneration 8(a) KEENE =
The remuneration to the auditors for audit and non- MBS R IFDETRE < R EEN BT W
audit services is as follows: ™
2006 2005
—_EENRGF _EERF
us$’000 UsS$’000
=7 =TT
Audit services LIRS 189 138
Non-audit services JEBETRFS
— financial due diligence ~ — INES=EZ
review on UHERSS
acquisitions 309 129
Total remuneration to 2 B B0 B = 1R 2R
auditors 498 267
Less: non-audit service fee &l : B AL IEERET
capitalised AR5 & A (309) (129)
Net remuneration to auditors 5t AU G TR <
charged to income 2 85 8 B <5 )5 38
statement 189 138
Note: Of the above audit and non-audit services fees of US$189,000 Myt : B ENMBSIRIFBSTRBENALR IR ERD IR
(2005: US$114,000) and US$309,000 (2005: US$73,000) 189,000 75 (Z R FHLE © 114,000 7T) & 309,000% 75
respectively are payable to the Company’s auditors. (=S 1% : 73,000%7T) °
9. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 9. EENX (BRBESH=E)
EMOLUMENTS)
2006 2005
—EBEREF —_EEhF
US$’000 US$’000
=TT =TT
Salaries, bonus and allowances o BRLRIZER 24,444 20,011
Pension costs RIATRA
— defined contribution plans — EBRHREE (MEtE@)
(Note (a)) 329 592
— defined benefit plans FE 8RR A 5t 8 (51 26)
(Note 26) 531 567
Share options, value of BRE BRERFEE
employment services 448 —
Staff welfare and benefits ST A Rt 2,446 1,496
28,198 22,666




9.

EMPLOYMENT COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

(a)

(b)

9.

BERK (BIFESME) =)

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong (@ AEEBDZHHESEESSHE ERE B
employees to join the Hong Kong Mandatory MABEEEE (a8 ﬁ:# J ) WSS
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a DEBBIIEFEATER ERMHEREE -
defined contribution scheme managed by an RZBELSE  AEHRASERS
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each SHAREAH M BT B ANE
of the Group and its Hong Kong employees makes BLUBEW A Z 5%5t & 0545 BIE B
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the R AEHBRESECHR RS RES
employees’ earnings as defined under the 1,000/8 7T °
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group’s and the employees’ contributions are
subjected to a cap of HK$1,000 per month.
As stipulated by rules and regulations in certain BUETBINERZRAURERR
overseas countries, the Group contributes to EAEERESME FE\HE%EL\T
defined contribution retirement plans for its SHEEHHR - ASEERERESKE
employees in the respective locations. The Group DAERMMIEES > D5 MEE\%%%@
and its employees contribute approximately 5% to Y 5%ZE 13% K 9T F 5%Z2 20%F 1
13% and 5 to 20%, respectively, of the employees’ R MASEERFEHRIN - HHEE—
salary as specified by the local jurisdiction, and the HERBUVERTARKEBAN &
Group has no further obligations for the actual £ -
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions.
During the year ended 30 April 2006, the aggregate REE_ESRFUR=THLFE
amount of the Group’s contributions to the AREEBD EMEBEAREZS B ZHRNRB
aforementioned pension schemes were 329,000 7T (ZE S AT : 592,000%
approximately US$329,000 (2005: US$592,000). 7o) e REBENRFUR=+8 ' A58
As at 30 April 2006, the Group was not entitled to SRR BHH R BRI LUR D K
any forfeited contributions to reduce the Group’s SEBRER(CESLF - 8) -
future contributions (2005: Nil).
The number of persons employed at the end of the b) FEREBESZAH
year
2006 2005
_BERE _ERhEF
Full time ESN = 981 1,065
Part time B 25 36
1,006 1,101
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B 38 3R &5 Bt 5
9.  EMPLOYMENT COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS'’ 9. EERAX (BRFESHE) =
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
(c) Directors’ emoluments (c0 ESME
The emoluments of every director for the year BHE_SENFUS=-THILIFESE
ended 30 April 2006 is set out below: SMEEINWT
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries and  Discretionary Other to pension
Name of director Fees allowances bonus benefits scheme Total
BIRE5HE
NS BE FEREH mELHL Htoidl BEHR BEt
USs$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
e e e e e e
Executive directors HWiTES
WANG Lu Yen B — 366 — — 10 376
Peter Loris Peter Loris
SOLOMON (i) SOLOMON (i) — 61 42 12 6 121
FU Jin Ming, Patrick B8 — 309 10 36 13 368
WONG Wai Ming (ii) EEH) 33 — — 12 — 45
KHOO Kim Cheng BB — 100 50 5 155
KWOK Chi Kueng (iii) L5 (i) — 150 10 — 7 167
Steven Julien FENIGER (iv) 3B E(iv) — 1,310 112 — 18 1,440 (v)
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang T8 33 - — 3 — 36
WOON Yi Teng, Eden SUUE 33 — — 3 — 36
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (vi) & Z47(vi) 32 — — 3 — 35
131 2,296 174 119 59 2,779

(i) Appointed on 28 February 2006. (i)

EZRBTH/N\BEEE-

(i) Redesignated from an independent non-executive director (ii) RIESAFA/+/\BBBIFNITES
to an executive director on 18 May 2005. EHEIRPDANITES -

(iii)  Resigned on 24 January 2006. (i RISFRE-—R-TUBHHE -

(iv)  Resigned on 28 February 2006. (iv), RISERE_BT+/\BHIE -

(v) This amount included the payment in lieu of notice (v) HHEBSBEBNBEANNNBRFE -
period.

(vi)  Appointed on 18 May 2005. vi) RISSHFHB+/\BEZEE-

117

=

L




9.  EMPLOYMENT COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS'’ 9. EERAX (BRFESHE) =
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
(c) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (o) ESH= @

The emoluments of every director for the year HE_SEhFEUS=-THILIFESE

ended 30 April 2005 is set out below: SN0 T

Employer’s
contribution

Salaries and  Discretionary to pension
Name of director Fees allowances bonus scheme Total
RIKE5HE
NS Lok HaRRE B BEHR BEt
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
eSS e e e eSS
Executive directors WiTES
WANG Lu Yen T8 — 366 — 10 376
FU Jin Ming, Patrick BEH — 307 — 13 320
KHOO Kim Cheng BB — 100 - 5 105
KWOK Chi Kueng I — 185 10 9 204
Steven Julien FENIGER EBE — 511 75 20 606
Independent non-executive BUFAGTES
directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang 50 33 — — — 33
WOON Yi Teng, Eden SUB 32 — — — 32
WONG Wai Ming aE%n 33 - - - 33
98 1,469 85 57 1,709

Hi@f 25 RSEBRERD DB E
BREQNVLEERNGERAH#E (R
BRESSITENR) -

Other benefits include the amortisation to the
income statement of the fair value of share options
measured at the respective grant dates, regardless
of whether the share options would be exercised or
not.

BE_SSENFOUR=+tBILLFE &
BESNZEIOUWEAREHZE T T
Z(CEShF: H) -

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during the year ended 30 April
2006 (2005: Nil).
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fe B S K EE
9. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 9. EERX (BRFESEHE) @
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
(d) Five highest paid individuals d) DoESHEZES
The five individuals whose emoluments were the RAFERN  AEBLEEaMEES
highest in the Group for the year include three P =F(CE2RhF: =B)RES
(2005: three) directors whose emoluments are HERENAOMP KRR - AOBRFEERN
reflected in the analysis above. The emoluments EN/BUESMI(CEETRE M
paid/payable to the remaining two (2005: two) ) EEBHETILT ¢
individuals during the year are as follows:
2006 2005
—BERE _EFAEF
US$'000 US$’000
£ %E7T
Salaries and allowances ¥z RIZ A6 628 521
Discretionary bonus BY IS 16K 83 33
Pension costs — defined RIKNE — EBRERETE
contribution plans 2 13
Share options, value of BRE  ESRBEE
employment services 89 —
802 567
The emoluments fell within the following bands: Hif= MU NEHE :
2006 2005
_BERE _R|hREF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000  1,500,0015 7T Z 2,000,000 7T
(equivalent to US$192,308 to (1855 12192,308= T8
US$256,410) 256,41057T) — 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,00158 ¢ £ 2,500,0008 7T
(equivalent to US$256,411 to (8% 1R256,411=TTE
US$320,513) 320,513%7T) — 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0018 7 £ 3,500,000/8 7T
(equivalent to US$384,616 to (185512384,6163=TTE
US$448,718) 448,718%7T) 2 —
2 2
(e) No emolument was paid to the directors of the (e) AEBUEOANITERURSMEE
Company or the highest paid individuals as an S SV B <2 PAVE R B2 B 0 A BB D
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AAEBRFHRRB N L LB BE -

compensation for loss of office.
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. UHER
2006 2005
—_EBERF _EERF
us$’000 US$’000
=TT =TT
Interest expense MNRAE=
— short-term bank loan — JRHIIRTER 297 21
— Amortisation of balance of — NENBAT XBR
consideration payable for EERNCREBESRSR
acquisitions of subsidiaries/
businesses and assets 252 —
— finance lease obligations — MEHESHIE — 1
549 22
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. IBREX
2006 2005
_EERF _EERF
US$’000 Us$’000
ETT ETT
Current income tax BIESPTER
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEBANER 1,624 665
— Overseas taxation — BiRIE 1,139 118
Deferred income tax EAER — 97
2,763 880

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda and, as such, is not liable for taxation in

Bermuda on its non-Bermuda income.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in or derived from Hong Kong. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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11.

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

11. IEREX »
AEFBEBRRIGANNMESRERSHERB
FAREBATRFONREIIR AT &R

weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the FWRBAERL T ¢
group companies as follows:
2006 2005
—BERE _EFhEF
US$'000 US$’000
£ XETT
Profit before income tax bR BT SR B Al 13,278 15,634
Tax calculated at domestic tax BRBRARSH BROVEN 2
rates applicable to profits in the ~ EMRAFHEIRE
respective places/countries 2,986 2,742
Income not subject to tax BEBERIA (3,492) (3,961)
Expenses not deductible for tax ATHRAE 1,068 952
Tax losses for which no deferred WEHERTOTRILREEEZ
tax asset was recognised RIBEIE 1,632 1,141
Utilisation of unrecognised tax NAXREBRBEE
losses (48) —
Under-provision in prior years FFEERRBEAR 617 6
Tax expense MBS 2,763 880

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 22.5%
(2005: 17.5%). The change is mainly caused by a
change in the distribution of the profit among group

companies in different tax jurisdictions.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of approximately US$1,895,000 (2005:
US$4,506,000).

IEE I EARRER22.5% (CBERE : 17.5%) °
RARCEBETEHNREBLAIRAORBIEER
BF 2 DIREENFTE -

12. AR ORBFEARGLRR
RAOmFBE ABGREANK1,895,000%E 7T

(CEZRE : 4,506,000E70) RAN T T
WERNRIE AR -
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13. DIVIDENDS

13. BR

2006 2005
“EERE “EERF
US$’000 UsS$’000
£ E7T
Interim, paid, of 2.7 HK cents BIYPHRR
(2005: 2.63 HK cents) per BRE®BR2.7B/
ordinary share _EERTF : 2.6381) 2,350 2,208
Final, proposed, of 2.9 HK cents ~ #IRKHE R
(2005: 4.8 HK cents) per BRE®BER2.98/
ordinary share (CEERF : 4.881) 2,479 4,008
4,829 6,216

At a meeting held on 28 June 2006, the Company’s
directors proposed a final dividend of 2.9 HK cents per
ordinary share in respect of the year ended 30 April
2006. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a
dividend payable in these financial statements, but will
be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for
the year ending 30 April 2007.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing

the profit attributable to equity holders of the

T SENRNENRE_T/\BEITNESE L  ANT
EFERBRFEE _SSNFONE=+HILLFE
KBREEREER2.981 - IWEEIKR SRR
v%ﬁﬁ% REPRMREBNRE - BREKRLRE

TEECHFNBE=+HLEFEERBFBHDIR -

14. BREF

(@ EX
EREABNEZREALNTERITEA
BOERENRENDRTSBRNEEY

Company by the weighted average number of HEtE -
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2006 2005
_BRERE _R2|hREF
Profit attributable to equity AR TREEFTFE A
holders of the Company S =AY
(US$'000) (F=7) 10,444 14,754
Weighted average number of BE&TEER
ordinary shares in issue DRI &
('000) (T8) 661,534 654,593
Basic earnings per share FBREANERA
(US cents) (=) 1.6 2.3
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

14. SREF &

MBBSHE

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company
has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. A calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual quoted market share price of the
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of
the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that

would have been issued assuming the exercise of

(b)

wE
ERESRIEERITBEEHELER
EBRREEERNBERT - KRHESH
TEBRNEFIEEE - ARTE—
RETHEMERR : BRE - 229
SIRBERTEBRENNVBEREE
B5tE  IEETRAVEE (BART
RONFEEFIINEREME) MmEALD
RO#HE - ULSHEMENREBEBED
MBHRZSEREETERFS TN
BROBBELR -

the share options.

2006 2005
_BERE _EFhF
Profit attributable to equity ADQTEZITFE A
holders of the Company FE A5 R A
(US$'000) (F=5T) 10,444 14,754
Weighted average number of B&{TEBRE
ordinary shares in issue MEEEDH (FR)
(‘'000) 661,534 654,593
Adjustment for share options Tl #& i 2 /E L 58 22
(‘000) (F &) 3,475 9,393
Weighted average number of 5t& & & ##
ordinary shares for diluted 2% 89 & K
earnings per share ('000) MREF D (F8) 665,009 663,986
Diluted earnings per share &2 #5 &7
(US cents) (E) 1.6 2.2

123

L

=




15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y%  BERRE

Furniture Motor
Leasehold and vehicles
improvements  equipment and yacht Total
HENXEE BARRE FBEREE =5
Us$'000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
=TT e =TT =TT
At 1 May 2004 RZEZEMNFER/—B
Cost WA 618 4,521 331 5,470
Accumulated depreciation REtIHE (243) (2,861) (190) (3,294)
Net book amount FEZEE 375 1,660 141 2,176
Year ended 30 April 2005 BE_EZLFNR=1+BLEE
Opening net book amount FORBFE 375 1,660 141 2,176
Exchange differences ERER 3 2 — 5
Additions RE 490 923 _ 1,413
Acquisition of businesses and ~ WEXBEREE

assets (Note 33) (B 5£33) 36 497 350 883
Disposals HE (26) (142) (2) (170)
Depreciation charge WEER (168) (952) (68) (1,188)
Closing net book amount FREBFE 710 1,988 421 3,119
At 30 April 2005 RISERHFMN/=+8H
Cost WA 1,063 5,515 672 7,250
Accumulated depreciation REtIHE (353) (3,527) (251) (4,131)
Net book amount FEFE 710 1,988 421 3,119
Year ended 30 April 2006 BEE_EERFENA=1+BLEE
Opening net book amount FORBFE 710 1,988 421 3,119
Exchange differences ERES — (12) — (12)
Additions NE 369 788 257 1,414
Acquisition of subsidiaries IEWB AT (MF5E33)

(Note 33) 116 163 1 280
Disposals e — (105) (21) (126)
Depreciation charge HEER (421) (906) (112) (1,439)
Closing net book amount FREBFE 774 1,916 546 3,236
At 30 April 2006 RISEREN/=+8H
Cost DN 1,533 6,033 797 8,363
Accumulated depreciation REtHE (759) (4,117) (251) (5,127)
Net book amount FTREDFE 774 1,916 546 3,236

Depreciation charge has been expensed in general and
administrative expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B #5358 &5 B &F
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B|EEE
Deferred  Patents and
Goodwill expenditures  trademarks Total
B8 BEERx ZIRBR &5t
Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
e =TT =TT e
At 1 May 2004 RIEENFER/F—H
Cost BN 16,560 3,014 — 19,574
Accumulated amortisation ~ RETITE (379) — — (379)
Net book amount E@FE 16,181 3,014 — 19,195
Year ended 30 April 2005 BE_EZTAFN/=1+BILEFE
Opening net book amount ~ F#)EREFE 16,181 3,014 — 19,195
Acquisition of businesses Wik REE (M5E33)
and assets (Note 33) 26,265 — — 26,265
Closing net book amount FTREBFE 42,446 3,014 — 45,460
At 30 April 2005 RIBEBRENS=+8
Cost/Net book amount RAR/EEFE 42,446 3,014 — 45,460
Year ended 30 April 2006 BE_EZNREN/=1+BLEFE
Opening net book amount ~ F#REFE 42,446 3,014 — 45,460
Exchange differences ERER — — 2,776 2,776
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WWEN BT
(Note 33) (My5E33) — — 65,179 65,179
Closing net book amount FRIEAFE 42,446 3,014 67,955 113,415
At 30 April 2006 RIBEREMR/=+H
Cost/Net book amount BA/EEEE 42,446 3,014 67,955 113,415

During the year ended 30 April 2005, upon adoption of
IFRS 3, accumulated amortisation of goodwill of
US$379,000 at T May 2004 has been eliminated against

the cost of goodwill.

Deferred expenditures comprise mainly amount incurred
for renewing a buying agency agreement, which is to be
amortised over a three-year period of the buying agency
agreement, in which the related benefits are expected to

be realised.

REE"SERFNE=F+HILFE - fEER
BIIREI PR SRR EIFRE - R_BFNFH
BE—B8R5H#8379,000= T2 ERAFER

ELERTE2OEEBRBAERBNELZ
B MERDRRBAEGR =FHEH
# HEERADBHESIURER -

L
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. MLEE =)

Impairment tests for intangible assets mEEEREBEAR

Intangible assets are allocated to the Group’s cash- BRBEDOREERESEIR MERES
DEMBEBANNAEBRIIRTEN -

generating units identified according to country/place of
operation and business segment.

A segment-level summary of the allocation of intangible BREENENENBEMEZZIW0T -
assets is presented below.

2006 2005
“EBERE “EEhF
Sales of Provision Sales of Provision
merchandise of services Total merchandise of services Total
BRHE RERE &5t BmHE RHRH 85t
Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’'000 US$’000
=7 =T Ep =TT =7 =T
Goodwill =
— Hong Kong — &8 26,265 16,181 42,446 26,265 16,181 42,446
Deferred expenditures BRI
— Hong Kong — &8 — 3,014 3,014 — 3,014 3,014
Patents and trademarks — SEF R EHiZ
— United Kingdom — 1E 67,955 — 67,955 — — —
94,220 19,195 113,415 26,265 19,195 45,460

The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
value-in-use calculations of goodwill and deferred
expenditures are calculated using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a three-year period,
respectively. The value-in-use calculation of patents and
trademarks is calculated using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using estimated growth
rate of 3%.

Management determined financial budgets based on past
performance and its expectations for the market
development. The pre-tax discount rate used in the
value-in-use calculations of goodwill and deferred
expenditures is approximately 5.8% and the pre-tax
discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations of
patents and trademarks is 10.4%, which reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant segment.
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SIEDAERE - ASEBAAUESEBHEND
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DRI EBECERPBERELMA< - A%
BN ALEREHERATRYBREREEL
REn8RistEsilRBRaERPEE
BEhFHRHEREN A% GEHBE
S -
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FTRBYRAIHTIZRKR5.8% » EXREFRE
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17.

18.

Notes to the Financial Statements

fe B S K EE
INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. R—REEBEEXRZRE

2006 2005
ZEERE —_EFAhEF
US$’000 UsS$’000
£ E7T
At beginning of the year PREFAD 170 —
Investment in a joint venture R—ZKEEBTLELKRE — 182
Share of loss of a joint venture BIE—REEEECEHIE (49) (12)
At end of the year PR 121 170

The Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is AEERFLEMEEREIRERLT ¢

unlisted, was as follows:

Percentage of attributable

Name Place of establishment Principal activities equity interest
B8 BRI 38 R -3 BEREB D (%)
CSC Consultancy Co., Ltd.  Mainland China Provision of business 50
ARBBBBERLT D information, management
consulting and social
compliance services
RHEFEH BEBEBIR
MEeEEFREeTESRE
INVENTORIES 18. B8
2006 2005
_EBRE _E2RF
US$'000 US$'000
7T =TT
Finished goods ==Yy ] 13,540 55
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and GEMAER RFE WS AE217,759,0005 7T (—

included in cost of sales amounted to US$217,759,000
(2005: US$41,000,000).

No provision for inventory obsolescence was made
during the year ended 30 April 2006 (2005: Nil).

SZRT ¢ 41,000,000FET0) LEEMA LA

AEEREE

— S EE
—==/\

FOR=t+BLFEWE(C

SELT B USECEFDERE -

L
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. BIREBSIERER

The credit terms granted to customers range from 60 to BYEFEC—REEHBOREIORNSE - &
90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as WEZERRZERH MWD T ¢
follows:
2006 2005
_BERE —_®FAhEF
US$’000 US$’000
£ xE7T
0 to 30 days 0— 30K 22,687 13,237
31 to 60 days 31 — 60k 8,116 3,453
61 to 90 days 61 — 90K 2,205 578
Over 90 days BiBIOK 7,091 3,649
40,099 20,917
Less: Provision for impairment of 8 : [EINE 2 & F 08 B &
trade receivables (5,577) (609)
34,522 20,308
During the year, the Group recognised a loss of FR - AEBEDBEBNEZERBESE
US$5,749,000 (2005: US$681,000) for impairment of its 5,749,000 70 (_SZ AT : 681,000FETT) °
trade receivables. The loss has been included in general BEEBESSIA—MRRITHEASZED °

and administrative expenses.

Trade receivables are denominated in the following BINEZERRDOBUTEKIE -
currencies:

2006 2005
_BERE _S20F
US$’000 UsS$’000
ETT ETT
United States dollar =TT 34,389 18,423
Sterling (United Kingdom) RiE 5,000 2,105
Euro BT 309 —
New Taiwan dollar FOB 275 259
Hong Kong dollar BT 5 55
Others =t 121 75
40,099 20,917
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19.

20.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate

their fair values.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables are limited due to the Group’s large number
of customers, who are geographically and industry
dispersed. Due to these factors, management believes
that no additional significant credit risk beyond amounts
provided for impairment (collection losses) is inherent in
the Group’s trade receivables.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

19. BEIRBSER =

BNESERRREBERANFLEEES -

BRAEBADSFAEME EOE - WEKRS
SI3E > WERBNESERRVEERRS
EPEBR - ERISRER - EREBAEIE @ IR
RBE BOREER) BB 8B - AEERN
ESERUETOTHMENEERAR -

20. BURE #EREMEBRRE

Group Company
A58 VNN

2006 2005 2006 2005
“EERE TEERTF TEFERE “|ZELF
UsS$’000 US$’000 US$’000 UsS$’000
7T e =TT 7T
Prepayments IR /L 1,136 567 3 21
Rental deposits ek 7 454 705 — —
Interest receivable FEULR) 2 — 146 — 146
Other receivables HinEWNRIE 5,156 2,291 — —
6,746 3,709 3 167

During the year, the Group recognised a loss of
US$104,000 (2005: Nil) for the impairment of its other
receivables. The loss has been included in general and

administrative expenses.

TR AEERBEMENRBERIEGIE
104,000%E70 (_EBESHT + ) - BEEBER
SEA—MRITHESZET -
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21.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21. RERRESFEERB

Group Company
r&E8 Y. /N
2006 2005 2006 2005
TEERE TEERF TEERE TEELF
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$'000
ETT £ £ ETT
Bank deposits with original WITHERIREEB
maturity
— Under 3 months — =—ERMUA 6,330 5,562 50 1,009
— Over 3 months — BBE=E8 — 7,000 — 7,000
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER
(Note 24) (Mg EE24) 7,000 5,000 7,000 5,000
Other bank balances and cash HMROTBERIRE 24,279 9,761 55 66
37,609 27,323 7,105 13,075
The effective interest rate on bank deposits was WOGERNEBRNRNR21%(CEFHE

approximately 2.1% (2005: 3.4%) per annum. These

deposits have an average maturity of four years (2005:

five years). They are included as current assets as there is

an early termination clause.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

following currencies:

3.4%) - ZEERNERWIBBROUE (ZFF
F:AF)  BRESESRILER - SULIIARE

It
it

o

\

RERRESFEBEDERMUTEEIE :

Group Company
r&EH Y. N/N)

2006 2005 2006 2005
“EERE TEELTF “BFERE _|ELEF
US$’000 US$’000 US$'000 US$’000
e =7 =7 XETT
United States dollar =TT 28,277 23,574 7,077 13,026
Sterling (United Kingdom) =iE 7,190 1,280 — —
Hong Kong dollar BT 1,437 1,998 28 49
Others H A 705 471 — —
37,609 27,323 7,105 13,075
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fe B S K EE
22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. BIVESERMR
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: EINESERVEHONAOT -
2006 2005
B RE _ERAF
US$'000 US$’000
ETT XETT
0 to 30 days 0— 30K 20,002 6,547
31 to 60 days 31— 60X 15,485 759
61 to 90 days 61— 90F 5,093 227
Over 90 days BiEIOK 4,009 1,611
44,589 9,144
Trade payables are denominated in the following EINEZERDEZUTEEIE -
currencies:
2006 2005
—BERE _ERhEF
US$'000 US$’000
ETT XETT
United States dollar =TT 28,360 6,210
Sterling (United Kingdom) =i 9,589 —
Euro BT 4,910 —
Hong Kong dollar BT 1,727 2,918
Others Hi 3 16
44,589 9,144
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate BNEZERNVEBTRENLEEFES -

their fair values.
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23.

24.

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

BEStERREMENIRE

Group Company
rESH /N
2006 2005 2006 2005
“EERE “TEERF “EBERE “BERF
Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000 UsS$’000
=7t =TT =TT =T
Provision for bonuses TEARL B s 1,014 977 — —
Provision for warranties TBREBEE 2,358 — — —
Accrued expenses RETA= 2,045 2,069 4 —
Other payables HMENRIE 11,756 3,542 13 12
17,173 6,588 17 12
SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS 24. WHRITEN

Short-term bank loans are denominated in United States
dollar, bore interest at 4.8% (2005: 3.0%) per annum,
and are secured by bank deposits of US$7,000,000
(2005: US$5,000,000) (Note 21).

The carrying amounts of short-term bank loans

approximate their fair value.

The Group has total banking facilities of approximately
US$60.5 million (2005: US$41.7 million) including
borrowing facilities of approximately US$9.1 million
(2005: US$4.8 million).

At 30 April 2006,
debenture over the assets of a 60%-owned subsidiary of
the Company amounted to US$7,208,000 (2005: Nil) to
cover a banking facility in the ordinary course of

there was a fixed and floating

business.
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“=EENRF : 3.08) - %EELL7,000,000
=50 (CEEAF ¢ 5,000,000%E70) FIKIP (W
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CHIRTERCEDTENRENEEEES -
AEBCHRITHREREE KR 60,500,000 70

T EEFRF : 41,700,000E70) c EDEIEHE
2/ & £ 9,100,000 7T (_SEEAHF :
4,800,000%73) °

ROCEERFOE=18 AR T60%Em
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBS
25. BALANCE OF CONSIDERATION PAYABLE FOR 25. IWEWBAT EBREEZENUAR
ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESSES B&HEA
AND ASSETS
2006 2005
“EBEREF _REhRF
US$’000 US$'000
ETT ETT
Balances payable: FEAT RIB 8RR -
Within one year —&FR 12,286 6,461
Between one and two years —FEx_F 10,299 4,590
Between two and five years “FEQF 7,697 2,602
30,282 13,653
Less: Amount representing Bl BARE D < RER
interest element (923) —
Present value of consideration BIVREBLZIRE
payable 29,359 13,653
Less: Current portion (included in 8 : REE D (BIBEEABEBERN)
current liabilities) (12,286) (6,461)
17,073 7,192
At 30 April 2006, the fair value of the consideration RIZBSSRFONA=+8  WENBAD, *
payable for acquisitions of subsidiaries/businesses and B REERMABC Y EERR29,359,000
assets was approximately US$29,359,000. The fair value =TT c AEBNABARBEAEEVIIEEBTA R
is calculated based on cash flows discounted using a rate WAECHARMBRCIRTRERERESE
based on the Group’s average borrowing rate of NV EE -

approximately 4.3% per annum.
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26. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Post-employment benefits were mainly contributed by

the Group’s operation in Taiwan. Movements of post-

employment benefits in the liability recognised in the

consolidated balance sheet is as follows:

UNEER]

=
]
ob
jis
i
m
i
St
H
w
‘o
oF
3
il
m
[z

2006 2005
“EERE “EZhF
Taiwan Others Total Taiwan Others Total
=) | Ht =F) =) | Hty &5t
US$’000 US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
=7 e e ET =7 e
Note (a) Note (a)
bt &t () Bt &t ()
At beginning of the year R4 1,107 544 1,651 953 319 1,272
Exchange differences ERER (19) (13) (32) 58 23 81
Acquisition of businesses INEXHRREE
and assets (Note 33) (fg5E33) — — — — 131 131
Amounts charged to the St ANmTZHE
income statement
— Pension costs — other — BREMA —
post-employment HiES
benefits RKBA — 48 48 — 55 55
— Pension costs — — BAREZHA —
defined benefit LA 5t S
plans (Note 9) GED) 200 331 531 165 402 567
Payments made during ~ IRERITR
the year (158) (349) (507) (69) (386) (455)
At end of the year RER 1,130 561 1,691 1,107 544 1,651
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

26. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 26. BERKBH =

Note: Bust -

(@) According to laws and regulations in Taiwan, the Group is (a) RIFOBERRZER  AEBROEOEBEESRNE
obliged to pay its employees in Taiwan, upon retirement, BR - BRABUEMZECRN  WiZEEERSER
disability or death, post-employment benefits based on the BEHRGRIEDFEZTRIARA - REBRTS
number of years of services and final average salary. The Group SEREUBROBRERKBNEELET —RIEE
carried out an actuarial valuation in April 2006 of its obligation 5iE -

for post-employment benefits payable to employees in Taiwan.

The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in HIRBEOBEAEREREVBRERKBANRIFSE
respect of the post-employment benefits due under the laws and EEBEXRPEABATEOTUT :

regulations in Taiwan is analysed as follows:

2006 2005
—RERE _REREF
US$’000 US$'000
E =TT
Present value of obligations BRBASERE 1,049 1,088
Unrecognised actuarial gains RERBE W& 81 19
Liability in the consolidated RiFEEEGBRPEE
balance sheet 1,130 1,107
(b) The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement in (b) HRBEBOESARFESNERERBRTEONOT
respect of the plan in Taiwan is analysed as follows:
2006 2005
—RBRE —®BQEF
US$’000 US$'000
F=E=7 e
Current service cost RERBEMA 139 70
Interest cost MREA 61 31
Net actuarial losses recognised RERBROVEEHEFER
during the year — 64
200 165
The charge for the year has been included in general and REERCBABIR—MRITHEAS -
administrative expenses.
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FRCEZRERRWOT :
2006 2005
“BERE —_®ELF
Discount rate IR 3.5% 3.5%
Expected rate of salary increases EHHTERE 1.5% 2.0%




27. DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes related to the same fiscal
authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

27. BEREBR

BEBRIMENTOEBIIEIREEREEE
HIBEREEERY  METRERG—FH
HEE1ERT - BIIREEREBREERERE - B

HEBWT :

2006 2005
“EEREF “EELF
us$’000 UsS$’000
=TT =TT
Deferred liabilities to be settled BR+_EERENCELERE
after more than 12 months 125 118

The gross movements on the deferred income tax
account, which arise from accelerated/decelerated tax
depreciation, are as follow:

Deferred income

RENRBERREFERTHMERBE
FBWH

Deferred income

tax assets tax liabilities Total
BEFMBREE BEFBREE Bt
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
“EERFE EERF EEXRFE BERhF BERE _EBLEF
US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
=TT e e =TT =TT e
At beginning of the year 1RE#] (2) — 120 21 118 21
Acquisition of WENBLT
subsidiaries (f¥5E33)
(Note 33) — — 7 — 7 —
(Credited)/charged RiFel@mE
to the income D3R, (BEN)
statement (Note 11) (My&tt11) (2) (2) 2 99 — 97
At end of the year RERK (4) (2) 129 120 125 118

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of approximately US$6,039,000 (2005:
US$4,455,000) in respect of losses amounting to
US$34,509,000 (2005: US$25,455,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income. These tax
losses have no expiry date.
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28.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B #5358 &5 B &F
SHARE CAPITAL 28. BX
2006 2005
“EERE “EERF
us$’000 uUs$’000
Sy eSS
Authorised: ERE ¢
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares 2,000,000,0002 Z KR E/E
of US$0.02 each 0.02=TToERBR 40,000 40,000
Nominal value Number of shares
BE iogn S 4=|
us$’000 ‘000
=TT Fh
Issued and fully paid: ERITRERE
At 1 May 2004 REBEEBNFHAE—H 13,090 654,477
Issue of shares upon exercise THEBRERMET
of share options (Note (a)) 2 B 1D (M EE () 61 3,059
Repurchase of shares (Note (c)) EORD (ML) (38) (1,902)
At 30 April 2005 RIESHFMNE=+8 13,113 655,634
Issue of shares upon exercise of — {JTIBEERERTET
share options (Note (a)) 2B (e @) 24 1,210
Issue of shares upon acquisition — WEMNEADE
of subsidiaries (Note (b)) FTEs 172 B tn (vt (b)) 200 10,001
At 30 April 2006 RIESERFONBE=+H 13,337 666,845
Notes: By st
(a) During the year ended 30 April 2006, 1,210,000 (2005: (a) 1,210,00019

3,059,000) share options were exercised at an exercise price of
HK$1.60 (2005: ranging from HK$1.60 to HK$2.55) per share to
subscribe for 1,210,000 (2005: 3,059,000) shares of US$0.02

each. Proceeds from such issue amounted to approximately

US$248,000 (2005: US$746,000).

(b) On 19 October 2005, 10,001,000 shares of US$0.02 each of the

Company were issued at a price of approximately HK$2.20

(equivalent to US$0.28) per share as part of the consideration for

the acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33).

BE_ESAFUB=+BLEER -

EE R 3,059,00010) B ELIER1.608 T
SR : NF1.60BTE2.558T2 @) 21TE
BETE - LBBEREE0.0235T21,210,0008
(CSBZRF 3,059,000 B0 - BEIRITHE
MIEH248,0005 70 (_FBERF -

RIBSERhFE+TBETNE  XAYUEERK2.208 7T
(185 1R0.28%7T) 2 B8 3%4710,001,0002 S B &
BT 2B DR

0.02ETZ AN IR D
B (P 5E33) ©

AFRIBIE

746,000 7T) ©

FH MEEE

137



28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c) During the year ended 30 April 2005, 1,902,000 ordinary shares
of US$0.02 each were repurchased by the Company at prices
ranging from HK$2.500 to HK$2.975 per share, for a total
consideration of approximately US$679,000. These shares were

subsequently cancelled.

During the year ended 30 April 2006, there was no
purchase, sales or redemption of the Company’s shares
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (“the Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution of the
then sole shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to 2012.
Under the Scheme, the Company’s Board of Directors or
a committee thereof may grant options to eligible
persons to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
per share of not less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of a share; (ii) the closing price of a share as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the date of the offer
of the relevant option; and (iii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer. A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of options. The maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other scheme to be adopted by the
Company from time to time must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in issue
from time to time. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the share
options in cash.
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(c) REE_SSRFNE=+BIFER  KAATUE
BRNF2.5008TE2.975B T BREOBREE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fe B S K EE
29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 29. BREE (=)
Movements in the number of shares options outstanding AT EREHE R EAABR < NEYIYT
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as FEECZHWT -
follows:
2006 2005
ZEERE —_EFAEF
Average Average
exercise exercise
price price
per share Options per share Options
BRI Z2RYR
TEE BRRE TEB BRE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T BIT T
At beginning of the year PREFAD 2.411 63,834 2.395 68,075
Granted b= Zunl 2.315 10,500 — —
Forfeited E U — — — —
Exercised LS 1.600 (1,210) 1.904 (3,059)
Lapsed KM 2.411 (27,860) 2.834 (1,182)
At end of the year PR #R 2.404 45,264 2.411 63,834

All the outstanding options at 30 April 2006 are
exercisable. Options exercised during the year ended 30
April 2006 resulted in 1,210,000 (2005: 3,059,000)
shares issued at a weighted average price of HK$1.60
(2005: HK$1.904) per share. The related weighted
average price at the time of exercise was HK$2.34
(2005: HK$2.93) per share.

ROCBEAFNE=1+0  FEERERTF
IF - REE_SERNFUE=FTBIEE
M RITIEEEREMETRID1,210,0008 (—
£ZNTF ¢ 3,059,0008) - FRIEEFEIIBE
R1.608BTT (CESBRE  1.904887T) {78
EREFCEEERIE BB R2.348T
(CSEBAF 2938T) °




29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 29. BRE »

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the MU NRIRERFERTECBREEM S H
following expiry dates and exercise prices: RATEE :
Exercise
price
per share Shares
BRITEE i=37)
2006 2005
_RBERE _B8hEF
HK$ ‘000 ‘000
BT T+ T+
Expiry date & 8
20 May 2008 —_EEN\FhB_+H 2.550 15,644 27,734
26 June 2008 “EENFRBT+RHE 2.220 — 1,660
5 November 2008 _EE/N\F+—BAH 1.600 6,510 12,780
29 May 2009 —_BEENFERB_-_+ANB 2.125 3,560 6,350
29 March 2010 _E-EF=-—B_+hHB 2.975 9,050 15,310
13 October 2011 —_E—%+8+=H8 2.315 10,500 —
2.404 45,264 63,834

The fair value of share options granted by the Company BARA TR BRENQVEEX710,000E7T 15
of approximately US$710,000 was determined by using NBBNR — SFRMGERIMERE - LR
the Black-Scholes valuation model. The significant SIERNMTHANERESR -

inputs to the model were:

Date of grant Eedul=R 30 March 2004 14 October 2005
—_ES|0OF _R|hREF
=B=+8 +8+0E8

Share price at date of grant (HK$) #R#EH B RHEE (&) 2.975 2.275

Exercise price (HK$) Tl C8T) 2.975 2.315

Annualised volatility BRESHRIE 43.03% 37.40%

Annual risk-free interest rate HERITRER 2.22% 4.13%

Life of share options (years) BREGNERS (F) 4to 4.5 3.51t0 4.5

Dividend yield [E3=E 2.13% 2.85%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBS
30. RESERVES 30. GiR
(@) Group (@ A&EB
Share Capital
Share option Special redemption Capital Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
BB =N
REEE BiE RIABRE HWORE BEXRE RERBR RBEA Bt
US$'000 US$'000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$'000 US$'000
e e =TT =TT e e e e
At 1 May 2004 R-ZEZMEF
h18—B 16,607 — 184 10 — (693) 27,449 43,557
Profit for the year FEHF — — — — — — 14,754 14,754
Premium arising on issue  [R/7 /@ &

of shares upon exercise maT R

of share options EECmB 685 — — — — — — 685
Repurchase of shares BORD (641) — — 38 — — (38) (641)
Exchange differences ERER — — — — — (164) — (164)
Dividend paid ETRR — — — — — — (5,985) (5,985)
At 30 April 2005 R_BRARE

Ue=+8 16,651 — 184 48 — (857) 36,180 52,206
Profit for the year FERF — — — — — — 10,444 10,444
Employee share option EEBRRESTE —

scheme, value of EERBER

employment services — 448 — — — — — 448
Premium arising on issue B TFEIE

of shares upon BITRODESE

B
— exercise of share —iTEERE

options (Note 28) (Br&t28) 224 — — — — — — 224
— acquisitions of — WEREAT

subsidiaries (B 5£28533)

(Notes 28 and 33) 2,621 — — — — — — 2,621
Exchange differences ERER — — — — — 1,742 — 1,742
Capital contribution from  —ZXMWEAT—3

a minority shareholder DERBEE

of a subsidiary (ByEE34(b)

(Note 34(b)) — — — — 569 — — 569
Dividend paid EVRR — — — — — — (6,347) (6,347)
At 30 April 2006 RISSNRE

E=+8 19,496 448 184 48 569 885 40,277 61,907
Representing: & :
2006 final dividend BIR_SSREF

proposed KBRS 2,479

Others Hito 37,798
40,277
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30. RESERVES (continued)

30. Bg e

(b) Company (b) AAT
Share Capital
Share option redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
EX
BOHE BRERR BORRK Bi&EH REB&RAF =kl
US$'000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$'000 US$’000
ETT ETT ETT E7T ETT ETT
At1May 2004  R_ZEE
hA/—8 16,607 — 10 9,946 11,294 37,857
Profit for the year & s 7l — — — — 4,506 4,506
Premium arising on {718 & i &
issue of shares maxiTRMD
upon exercise of  ELEZHE
share options 685 — — — — 685
Repurchase of BORND
shares (641) — 38 — (38) (641)
Dividend paid EURR — — — — (5,985) (5,985)
At 30 April 2005 R_SShE
ME=+08 16,651 — 48 9,946 9,777 36,422
Profit for the year =& Al — — — — 1,895 1,895
Employee share BEEERE
option scheme, S5tE —
value of EERFEE
employment
services — 448 — — — 448
Premium arising W NEE
on issue of BEORDES
shares upon B
— exercise of — TEERE
share options (B 51 28)
(Note 28) 224 — — — — 224
— acquisitions of — WENEAT
subsidiaries (Fy 528
(Notes 28 F33)
and 33) 2,621 — — — — 2,621
Dividend paid BEURE — — — — (6,347) (6,347)
At 30 April 2006 FR_ES/F
WBE=+H 19,496 448 48 9,946 5,325 35,263
Representing: fLE
2006 final BIK_EFREF
dividend REBR R
proposed 2,479
Others Hi 2,846
5,325
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30. RESERVES (continued)

Special reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of share capital of the Company
issued and the aggregate amount of nominal value
of share capital of subsidiaries acquired by the

Company through an exchange of shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
contributed surplus account of the Company is
distributable to equity holders. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i)
it is, or would after the payment be unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

30. BB
BRREEANIFETRABERAR
NIYURBRBOTRNECWBEAD 2
RABDEREMS =58 -

RBEERE-N/N\—FL2TE ART
LEBEGKEETHIRIERTS
A e R > KRIETFIBERAEEIK
KT RBAEE B ERGPIELEDIK
RITBREEZVIHEE » A
EECTUEREBEEIREEBERERT
BAURBRDBERBE -

L

=
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31. CASH FLOW STATEMENT 31. REREMER
(@) Cash generated from operations Q) KEEBMERS
2006 2005
EBRE “EERF
Us$’000 Us$’000
ETT =TT
Profit for the year FEmA 10,515 14,754
Adjustments for: REEE 2
Income tax expense PiBRE> 2,763 880
Share of loss of a joint BE—REELEECBE
venture 49 12
Interest expense AMEHE= 549 29
Interest income LSO (814) (1,321)
Dividend income BRURA _ (16)
Excess of interest in fair REAWBATEEBEALW
value of acquired BENERBENAZRE
subsidiaries’ net assets
over cost (3,397) _
Depreciation of property, Mx - BERRBEITE
plant and equipment 1,439 1,188
Loss on disposal of WEWE MERRBER
property, plant and
equipment 10 36
Gain on disposal of HERBREZNES
short-term investment
Share options, value of BRE — RERBERE
employment services 448 _
Changes in working capital S&E&T2E)
(excluding the effects of (FEBRIGERERBNER
acquisition and exchange ERERIFE)
differences on
consolidation):
Inventories =8 (9,241) (55)
Trade receivables BUE SRR 9,090 (24)
Prepayments, deposits and ~ BIURIE » TR
other receivables Hth I RIE (2,802) 2,953
Amounts due from related ~ ENEEATZRIE
companies 1,545 _
Trade payables EINEZER 6,311 (2,039)
Accruals and other EStBRREM
payables T RRIE 4,602 2,576
Post-employment benefits BERKBA 40 248
Cash generated from HEXEFMERT
operations 21,107 19,201
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31. CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

31. FEREMNER &

(b) RIFERZABRN  BENXE - BFE

Net book amount (Note 15) BR@EFE (MF5E15)

Loss on disposal of property, HEWZH - MERFEEIE

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and
equipment

HEWE  BERKBHE

B

RREHNERBERE
2006 2005
e L VA:S —_SShF
US$'000 US$'000
ETT ETT
126 170
(10) (36)
116 134

The principal non-cash transaction was the issue of
shares as consideration for the acquisition of
subsidiaries (Note 33).

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow

(0 EZFRERXBIRFEMOIRMDLUERINE
BT ZE (FEE33) -

d) FFESHTASEEMS  RaRBTSH

statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise: BEEEEE
2006 2005
_BERE _R|hEF
US$’000 US$'000
ETT ETT
Bank balances and cash ROBGERIER 37,609 27,323
Less: Fixed bank deposits B =ER
with original maturity CEBHIRTER
over 3 months and EEBEBIRITER
pledged bank deposits (fyEF21)
(Note 21) (7,000) (12,000)
Cash and cash equivalents RERREHEEE 30,609 15,323
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32. COMMITMENTS 32. EIE

(a) Operating lease commitments — where the Group (@)
is the lessee
The Group leases various office premises, staff
quarters, furniture and equipment under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases
have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal
rights.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are as

RRERE%E — DAKEBRARAA

AEBREATHBLESHERHEME
SEXEMAREN - BEITBS » BAK
i - 2SHEECHEE  AREEZ K
REBOENSEAR -

REATHHEEEHECRAREEE
REBEWT :

follows:
Office premises and Furniture and
staff quarters equipment
PRARENURETIBS B KRR B
2006 2005 2006 2005
_RRAE TRRLF TSSNRE "TE28LF
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
=TT ETT =TT 7T
Not later than one year —FR 1,581 1,081 127 132
Later than one year but not —®FM EBARFMUT
later than five years 1,558 1,176 213 299
Later than five years TP E 493 326 — 15
3,632 2,583 340 446
(b) Capital commitments (b) BREAE

The Group had the following capital commitments
for the acquisition of property, plant and

UTRAEEHBENRE BB RRE
LB ARAIE

equipment:
2006 2005
—_EERF _EERF
US$’000 US$’000
Sy eSS
Contracted for but not BEINEXREUBRS
provided for in the B
financial statements 280 484
Authorised but not BRUEBREIN
contracted for 13 109
293 593
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33.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On 19 October 2005, the Group acquired a 60% equity
interest in Dowry Peacock Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom. This transaction is
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.
The acquired business contributed revenues of
US$107,973,000 and net profit of US$177,000 to the
Group for the period from 19 October 2005 to 30 April
2006. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 May 2005,
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 30 April 2006
would have been US$364,853,000 and profit for the
year would have been US$11,228,000.

Dowry Peacock Group Limited and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the design and procurement of
consumer electronics products, supplying supermarkets
and mass merchandise retailers in the United Kingdom.

Details of net assets acquired, fair value of purchase
consideration and the net cash outflow in respect of the
acquisition are as follow:

33.

Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

EHEH

RCBENFE+HA+NE  AEBRE ST —B
RIEEEEMATI AT Dowry Peacock Group
Limited 2 60%&Em - WIBLX ZHEBINESST
FIR - B_BEEREFE+BT+NABE_EENR
FUB=1+HHE - INBIZEXBRAEET
HKI107,973,0005 70 < W s K2 K9177,0005< 70
AN BINER T EEhFhAE—B&E -
AAEEHLE SN FUA=THIFEZ
I 5 1#8 #9 /R 364,853,000 75+ M E R A 1§
¥ A11,228,000FE 7T °

Dowry Peacock Group Limited REM B AT
PRERFIAEBEBETER © ORR
IZEFEEZKATA@EDD%:?H#E °

BANEEFECHE  WBABZAYEE
ERHBEMEE R AL FRBIIWT :

US$'000
ETT
Fair value of net assets acquired WEEBEFECAVEE
(shown as below) (B30 77,257
Less: Minority interest B DB R (30,903)
46,354
Fair value of purchase WERB<AYEE
consideration:
Consideration shares KERD
— issued on 19 October 2005 — R_EBERHF+8+NHB
(Note 28) 17 (P 5 28) 2,821
— to be issued — %8G 3,447
Cash consideration RERE 35,506
Direct costs relating to the LB < EEAA
acquisition 1,183
42,957
Excess of interest in fair value of REAWBRAIEEFEALAFE
acquired subsidiaries’ net assets BIENRERBE NN RE
over cost 3,397

—wnraenness |4/

— =/



33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
The consideration shares to be issued will be issued
during the period from July 2006 to July 2008 subject to
the terms and conditions of the relevant sale and

purchase agreement.

An analysis of the net cash outflow in respect of the

acquisition is as follows:

MR AR

33. E¥SH =
BRI RBRDBIREEHSERENE

R_EERECRESES/N\FTH

BT -

MNBMEECRERDFEOMAOT ¢

US$'000
ey
Fair value of purchase WERB<RAFEE

consideration 42,957
Less: Consideration shares issued il : 22172 K BR D (2,821)

Outstanding purchase RS BTINERE
consideration payable (21,915)

Cash and cash equivalents BARTRRETSHEES
acquired (16,810)

1,411

The details of assets and liabilities acquired are as

follows:

INBEEREBBEHBEHILT ¢

Acquiree’s
Fair value  carrying amount
wREES 2
NYEEE REER
US$’000 UsS$’000
ETT ETT
Property, plant and equipment M BB RRE 280 280
Patents and trademarks 2R FHE 65,179 1,564
Inventories =58 4,244 4,244
Trade receivables JEWE SRR 23,304 23,304
Prepayments, deposits and FRIVRIE -~ 2 REAM
other receivables FEUTFRIE 235 235
Loan to a related company P —ZHKBELATIZER 1,432 1,432
Amounts due from related EW BN T 2 RIB
companies 306 306
Tax recoverable glRERE 591 591
Cash and cash equivalents BETRRESEES 16,810 16,810
Trade payables BB SRR (29,134) (29,134)
Accruals and other payables EstBR REMENRIE (5,983) (5,983)
Deferred income tax liabilities BELAEREE (7) (7)
77,257 13,642
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33.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 33.

On 31 December 2004, the Group completed its
acquisition of the businesses and certain related assets
and assumption of the related liabilities of Tamarind
International Limited (subsequently renamed as Stirling
(HK) Limited), a company incorporated in Hong Kong.
The acquired business contributed revenues of
US$39,365,000 and net profit of US$1,656,000 to the
Group for the period from 1 January 2005 to 30 April
2005. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 May 2004,
the Group’s revenue would have been US$168,568,000
and profit before allocations would have been
US$18,066,000.

Details of the net assets acquired, fair value of purchase
consideration and net cash outflow in respect of the
acquisitions are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

EHEH @
RTCEENF+_SA=+—08  AEETHMNK
B— B R&EBEMMN I~ 2 T Tamarind
International Limited (&% Stirling (HK)
Limited) ¥R E TEEWKEEMEEB S
BE-B_ EBEERF—HF—BE_EEXFINA/
—+BIFHE - FINESEBRAELEETIR
39,365,000 70 < WA A K2 1,656,000 7T &
A - BERZBIWER _SSENFHE—HE
7 AEBZWAER168,568,000%=7T °
DB ET & F 8 JR 18,066,000 7T ©

BRNBCBEBANEEFE WEABZAFTE
ERRERLFRFBELT :

US$'000
ETT
Fair value of net assets acquired BAZEEFERAVEEBE (B TX)
(shown as below) 3,206
Fair value of purchase WERB<RYEE :
consideration:
Cash consideration BERE 29,051
Direct costs relating to the BN R ERAA
acquisition 420
29,471
Goodwill (Note 16) FHE (stie) 26,265

An analysis of net cash outflow in respect of the
acquisitions is as follows:

MNBELECRERDFEIOML T :

US$’000
ETT
Fair value of purchase IWERBCRAYEE

consideration 29,471

Less: Outstanding purchase B AR BN INERE
consideration payable (9,679)

Cash and cash equivalents BARTRRETSEERER
acquired (39)




33.

34.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
The details of assets and liabilities acquired are as

follows:

33.

EESH @
FINBEERBBEZHFBHINNT :

Acquiree’s

Fair value  carrying amount

RIETS 2

NYEEE REEH

UsS$'000 US$’000

ETT XETT

Property, plant and equipment - BB R#ERE 883 883

Trade receivables JEUE SRR 9,749 9,749
Prepayments, deposits and RNRE -~ # REMEINHRIE

other receivables 4,460 4,460

Cash and cash equivalents BeRRTHEERES 39 39

Trade payables ENEZERER (10,260) (10,260)

Accruals and other payables EstEBR R EMENTRIE (1,534) (1,534)

Post-employment benefits BSRKNBA (131) (131)

3,206 3,206

The goodwill is attributable to the high profitability of
the acquired businesses and the significant synergies
expected to arise after the Group’s acquisition of
Tamarind International Limited.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 April 2006, the Company was
approximately 65.6% to 66.7% owned by RGS Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The Company’s directors regard Roly
International Holdings Ltd., a company incorporated in
Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, as being the

ultimate holding company.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to

common control or common significant influence.
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BEDHRRENEERE cSBMNEEND MU
ANEBEIWEE Tamarind International Limited ¥8
BEECEXNBEN G °

BEREALTRS
REE_SSAFNE=1+HILFERN AR
TJE RGS Holdings Limited (— B IR BB
RESHAMA T CRNT) BB K 65.6%F
66.7% * ANTEBRERBARERERAT
(—RRBREFMAILLRFINRBESRS
PIER LD RERERAT -

BREATETEERBEZMNS 7 AiE
PR BREERREHIS —DITEEATE

ARANTL - HASRMARAAZMAEREZE

RATIMRRBEEAL -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34. BRAEALIRS @
(@) The Group had the following material related party (@ AEBRBHEATESTUTIRS :

transactions:

Identity of related parties Nature of transactions 2006 2005
BHEATSR RBUE —EBERE _SShF
Note US$'000 US$'000
s %5 257
Subsidiaries of Rental expense (i) 95 67
Roly International
Holdings Ltd.
EREERERERALT A
LB T
Turmar Limited Rental expense (i) 130 131
BEERAT HEZR=
Ken Ball Limited Rental expense (i) 108 —
HEZR=
Premier Consultants Limited Consultancy fee (ii) 73 31
BEEE A

ZHRERZEREEATICWBRAIRANTLZ
BRHWEAT e

Subsidiaries of Roly International Holdings Ltd. are

fellow subsidiaries of the Company.

ERBRATIR—BEBERELE (AR TE
B REEIZEHE2NT -

Turmar Limited is 100% owned by Mr. WANG Lu

Yen, a director of the Company, and his spouse.

Ken Ball Limited is 100% owned by Mr. Peter Loris Ken Ball Limited % —RH Peter Loris
SOLOMON, a director of the Company. SOLOMON 4 (RAT&ES) T EHB I
3 .

Premier Consultants Limited /& —&E Barry
Richard PETTITT %54 (AR T —E &N B
AT ISO International (Holdings) Limited & &
B)ZzEHEZLT -

Premier Consultants Limited is 100% owned by Mr.
Barry Richard PETTITT, a director of ISO
International (Holdings) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

34. BEREALTRS @

(@  (continued) @ @&
Notes: B 5t -
(i) Rental expense was determined based on market rate and (i) HeRZD2EHEESREBEREREE -
floor area.
(i) Consultancy fee was charged in accordance with the (i) EBRBERRESINLEILBARAIKERSTSE -
terms of agreement made between the parties.

(b) During the year, a minority shareholder of a (b) RACDEFE —BENEBLTIN—ND
subsidiary waived his entitlement of dividends of HRENZZWELAIAETRZRR
US$949,000 declared by that subsidiary (2005: 949,000 70 (CESHE : 8) -

Nil).

(c) Balances with related parties () HEEBEALZEBH
The amounts due from related companies were BN BHELRICREBEREIRS - 2R
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable RAR—FRER -
within one year.

(d) Key management compensation d TEEBREFHMH

2006 2005
ZEBERE “EEREF
US$’000 Us$’000
ETT ETT
Salaries, bonus and i [BRLRIZRS
allowances 2,601 1,652
Pension costs — defined RARTZAAN — EEHREE
contribution plans 59 57
Share options — value of BRE — EERBEE
employment services 119 —
2,779 1,709
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35.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B #5358 &5 B &F
SUBSIDIARIES WEAT
2006 2005
—_EERF _EERF
US$’000 US$’000
Sy eSS
Unlisted shares, at cost KEMED (W) 9,987 9,987
Amounts due from subsidiaries FERMEATRE 31,522 26,318
41,509 36,305

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and without pre-determined repayment
terms.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 April
2006 are as follows:

BB ATIRBERELR  RREHFTE
RE e

ARIRZEFNREFLNE=+BNWBATE
BWF -

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation/
establishment/principal

place of operations

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

Principal activities

Percentage of
attributable

equity interest

MR RIS BR#ORARRE/ BERE
WEADBHE TEREME HMEX IBXH [ER7i)
Benchmark Profits Limited (i) British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1 Investment holding 100%
HBERARES ZER1ET KREZR
CU Packaging & Design British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1 Investment holding 100%
(BVI) Limited (i) REHARHES SER1=ET RERR
CU Packaging & Design Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2  Trading of merchandise 100%
Limited EE ZEE2ET and procurement agent
REEERBEAT BREZRREAR
Dowry Peacock Group United Kingdom Ordinary shares GBP300  Investment holding 60%
Limited xR SER300EE REER
eServices (BVI) Limited (i) British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1 Inactive 100%
HERBARFES Z@R1ET BEXH
eServices Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Inactive 100%
&8 HK$100,000 EHEXH

Z3ER100,0008 7T

L
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35.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation/
establishment/principal

place of operations

35. WBAT

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

Principal activities

Percentage of
attributable

equity interest

MR RIS BEIRBRRE BERE
WELADBHE TEREME HMERX IBXH [ER7i)
Ever Eagle Limited (i) British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1 Investment holding 100%
HBEARHE TBR1ET RERR
Golden Rules Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1  Investment holding 100%
Limited (i) R ZER1BT REZR
SEBRAT0)
IGCS Group Limited (i) British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$§1  Investment holding 100%
HERARFES ZBR1ET REZR
IGCS International Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1 Provision of social 100%
LEHERRES EBRIET compliance services
REMESSEES
SHIRE R
IGCS Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2  Provision of social 100%
B ZBR2ET compliance services
REMESIESE
SHIRE R
Inspire World Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 Inactive 100%
EREBRAT B ZER1BT EEXH
International Laboratory Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 Provision of laboratory 100%
Services Limited B ZBR1BT services
BRRERBERAT RIERTER
ISO International (BVI) British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1  Investment holding 100%
Limited HEERARES TER1ZT REER
ISO International (Holdings) Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$100  Provision of technical 100%
Limited B ZEER1008 T support and management
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35.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation/
establishment/principal

place of operations

Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

35. WBAT

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

Principal activities

Percentage of
attributable

equity interest

MR RIS BEIRBRRE BERE
WELADBHE TEREME HMERX IBXH [ER7i)
ISO Marketing Services Macao Ordinary shares  Trading of merchandise 100%
(Macao Commercial BP5 MOP$100,000 EREZ
Offshore) Limited Zi@R100,0008 #
ISO &K% (RPIEE =
BERB) ERATY
Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares  Investment holding and 100%
HEHARTES US$50,000 procurement agent
LiERS0,000%T RERRRIRENE
Linmark Agency (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Procurement agent 100%
Limited 58 HK$10,000 £
ZER10,00087T
Linmark Agency Republic of Mauritius Ordinary shares US$2  Procurement agent 100%
(Mauritius) Ltd EEEHAND TRz KREBEAE
Linmark Development (BVI) British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1 Procurement agent 100%
Limited HBERARES gEki=rx  RBAE
Linmark Electronics Limited United Kingdom Ordinary shares  Design and procurement of 60%
(formerly known as e GBP12,500 entertainment and
Schneider United Kingdom BB 12,5008 5 customer electronic
Limited) products
(BI78 Schneider United RERBEBESERI R
Kingdom Limited) RIREE
Linmark (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2  Investment holding and 100%
ME (58)BRAT B ZBR2ET procurement agent
REZRRERBENAE
Linmark International Bangladesh Ordinary shares ~ Procurement agent 100%
(Bangladesh) Ltd. =001 Taka20,000  REBAHE

Z@EE2 20,0008 £

bE
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35.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation/
establishment/principal

place of operations

35. iIWBAT

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

Principal activities

Percentage of
attributable

equity interest

SEMRIL RIS BRORARRE BERE
WELDBHE TEREHMR HMEX IEBEH gi
Linmark International Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Investment holding, 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited BB HK$200,000 procurement agent and
MEER (FB)BRATY BB 200,000 7T trading of merchandise
REZR RERAER
BRES
Linmark Merchandise Mainland China Registered capital ~ Provision of marketing 100%
Consultancy (Shenzhen) =) RMB1,500,000 consultancy and product
Limited (i) HMERN development services
MEBBERBHE (R AR¥1,500,000T RHEDSEEZIR
BERA T EnRERE
Linmark (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary shares  Provision of market trend 100%
KE GBP100 consultancy services
Z@R100EE REMBARERBARE
Linmark Westman British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares US$11 Investment holding 100%
Investments Limited (i) RERARES EERNET REER
Market Asia Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 Inactive 100%
WRBELD s ZBR1BT BEXH
Merchandise Creative, Inc. British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1 Inactive 100%
HEERARES ZER1ET BEXH
Merchandise Creative Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Procurement agent 100%
&8 HK$10,000 PRI
ZER10,00087T
Pacific Technologies Limited United Kingdom Ordinary shares Inactive 60%
xR GBP45,000  EZHEXH
ZiBR 45,0005 5
Power Path Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 Inactive 100%
EEERAT Ep ZER1BT BEXH
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35.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation/
establishment/principal

place of operations

Notes to the Financial Statements

35. WBAT

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital

Principal activities

MBBSHE

Percentage of
attributable

equity interest

MR RIS BEIRBRRE BERE
WELADBHE TEREME HMERX IBXH [ER7i)
Tamarind Agency Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1  Inactive 100%
HBEARFS ZBR1ET BEXH
Tamarind International British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1 Investment holding 100%
Holdings Limited (i) HEERARES ZER1ZT REER
Tamarind International Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1  Investment holding and 100%
Limited B Z@RUBT trading of merchandise
REZRERBRES
Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Bangladesh Ordinary shares  Provision of market trend 100%
Ltd. =091 Taka20,000 consultancy services
Z@R20,0005F REMBARERBERS
Trend Xpress, Inc. (i) British Virgin Islands Ordinary share US$1  Investment holding and 100%
REERARES EBRI1ET provision of market trend
consultancy services
REZRRREHEDS
MARBERBDRE
Trend Xpress Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2  Investment holding, 100%
BERAETRAT 58 EF=lEV=Pi provision of market trend
consultancy services and
trading of merchandise
RERR - BEDSER
BRBDRBERERES
Trend Xpress (S) Pte. Limited Singapore Ordinary shares S$2  Provision of market trend 100%
0% ZiBR 2R T consultancy services
REDSHANBEREIRSE
Westman Linmark (Thailand) Thailand Ordinary shares  Procurement agent 100%
Ltd. =8 Baht5,880,000  HRIEMIE

Preference shares
Baht6,120,000 (iii)

ZiB K 5,880,0005% Bk
{85582 6,120,0003= £k (iii)

bE

==
£
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBBSHE

35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation/
establishment/principal

place of operations

35. WBAT

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

registered capital  Principal activities

Percentage of
attributable

equity interest

MR RIS BEIRBRRE B R E
(g PNGIESE TEREME HMERX IBXH [ER7i)
Westman (Singapore) Private Singapore Ordinary shares  Procurement agent 100%
Limited # 0K $$200,000 REHIE
&2 8200,000%7 0% T
Westown Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Procurement agent 100%
BPERAY &8 HK$100,000  #REE(LIR
Z#8KR100,00087T
Notes: Bt et -

(i)

(iii)

The shares of these subsidiaries are held directly by the

Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Linmark Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited is a
wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, Mainland China for a term of 15 years up

to 2019.

The Group has beneficial interest in these preference shares
which are held by nominees through a scheme of arrangements.
Holders of the preference shares are entitled to a dividend
equivalent to 3.5% of the paid-up value of the preference shares,
before any dividend could be distributed to the holders of the
ordinary shares. Each of these preference share carries one-tenth
of the voting right (when compared to ordinary share) in the

company’s general meetings.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.
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(iii)

(iv)

ARTYEEFEASHBLAICRY - BNEAT
ZROUBERSS -

MEBRBERED (RINDBRATIR —RXRPEE
RERNRIZHSZERE - RE+LF BEEZ
FE-NERIL -

AEERZFEERPHECERERD  MAFEER
LBERBABE-—BRZPEEE - £OEBRES
NEKUETRZRE - BERZFBABREREBSR
BERHBERREEISHHRR - BRZFELR
BRAGEBREAS ERREY) — (HEBRIY
) -

SHBAIRERGEAAFTERNTORHEREETR
BECEBRER -





